

7. *Hazardous Waste Disposal Site and Facility Standards:* All hazardous waste disposal sites and facilities shall meet the standards established by State and Federal regulatory requirements.

4-10-02-03-03

## **OIL AND GAS WELL DRILLING AND PRODUCTION**

4-10-02-03-03-01

### ***Purpose***

This Section is enacted to protect and promote the health, safety, values, convenience, order, prosperity and general welfare of the current and future residents of the County. It is the County's intent by enacting this Section to facilitate the development of oil and gas resources within the unincorporated area of the County while mitigating potential land use conflicts between such development and existing, as well as planned, land uses. It is recognized that under state law the surface and mineral estates are separate and distinct interests in land and that one may be severed from the other. Owners of subsurface mineral interests have certain legal rights and privileges, including the right to use that part of the surface estate reasonably required to extract and develop their subsurface mineral interests, subject to compliance with the provisions of this Section and any other applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. Similarly, owners of the surface estate have certain legal rights and privileges, including the right to have the mineral estate developed in a reasonable manner and to have adverse land use impacts upon their property, associated with the development of the mineral estate, mitigated through compliance with this Section.

4-10-02-03-03-02

### ***Definitions***

#### **~~OIL AND GAS FACILITIES~~**

- ~~1. The site and associated equipment used for the production, treatment, and/or storage of oil and gas and waste products; or~~
- ~~2. An individual well pad built with one or more wells and operated to produce liquid petroleum and/or natural gas, including associated equipment required for such production; or~~
- ~~3. Temporary storage and construction staging of oil and gas; or~~
- ~~4. Any other oil and gas operation which may cause significant degradation.~~

~~For any other definition not listed in this section, t~~The definitions listed in Chapter 11 of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations and the Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation

Commission's regulations shall govern this section. If there is a conflict between the definitions in Chapter 11 and the COGCC's definitions, the COGCC's definitions shall prevail. If the term is not found in the COGCC's definitions or in Chapter 11, the term shall have its common meaning along with the spirit and intent of the Development Standards and Regulations and may be subject to interpretation by the County Manager or his or her designee.

## 4-10-02-03-03-03

**General Provisions**

1. Access: Oil and gas well installation shall be located to provide convenient access, shall accommodate the traffic and equipment related to the oil and gas operations and emergency vehicles, and shall comply with COGCC rules and Adams County Development Standards and Regulations. Oil and gas operations must minimize impacts to the physical infrastructure of the county transportation system.
2. Building Permit Required: If a well is permitted as a producing oil and/or gas well by the COGCC, a building permit is required. For the purpose of these standards and regulations, a building permit includes, but is not limited to, a Rig and Move Permit and Oil and Gas Permit, for the installation of pumps, tank batteries, and all other above-ground structures as well as any other applicable permits including, but not limited to, culvert permits, oversized-load permits, and floodplain use permit.
3. Fees and Permits: All applicable County fees adopted by the County, including postage fees, must be paid at time of application and prior to issuance of a building permit, including for all applicable permits required by the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations.
4. Safety Standards: Oil and gas operations shall be in compliance with COGCC safety and spill and release requirements. Any spill or release that is reportable to the Commission shall be simultaneously reported to the County's LGD, OEM, LEPC, Sheriff's Office, Community and Economic Development Department, Public Works Department, and applicable fire district.

The owner or operator of any installation that is required to prepare or have available a material safety data sheet for a hazardous chemical under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 651 et seq., and regulations promulgated under that Act, shall submit both a material safety data sheet (MSDS) for each such chemical and an annual emergency and hazardous chemical inventory form to the LEPC and the local fire district. A comprehensive and universal listing

of all hazardous chemicals shall be organized based on the various phases of operation including test wells and drilling and other construction activities submitted prior to construction and with the necessary building permit applications for a Rig and Move Permit and Oil and Gas Permit. In addition, operator shall have current MSDS and quantities on site at all times or available upon request.

5. Additional Reporting: The owner or operator of an installation shall also provide all annual tier II reports to the LEPC and the local fire district in accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws in a format acceptable to the LEPC.
6. Stormwater Controls: Oil and gas operations shall be in compliance with COGCC rules related to stormwater management regulations and Adams County Stormwater Quality Regulations as contained in the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations / Ordinances and other applicable federal, state, and county requirements.
7. Water Bodies and Water Quality: Oil and gas operations shall not cause adverse impacts to surface or ground waters within Adams County. Operators shall comply with all COGCC Rules, specifically with respect to spills and releases in floodplains and/or water bodies, and applicable water quality standards set by the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment.
8. Well Plugging and Abandonment: An operator shall comply with all COGCC rules regarding well abandonment and reclamation, including, but not limited to, removal of all equipment from the location and restoring the surface of the land to its original state. Notice of well plugging and abandonment shall be submitted by the operator to the County Building Safety Division and Community and Economic Development Department within forty-eight (48) hours.
9. Air Emissions: Air contaminant emission sources shall comply with the permit and control provisions of the state air quality control program (C.R.S. tit.25, art. 7 (C.R.S. § 25-7-101 et seq.)) and the rules and regulations promulgated by the State Air Quality Control Commission. The Operator shall employ such control measures and operating procedures as are necessary to minimize fugitive particulate emissions into the atmosphere.

**4-10-02-03-03-04**

***Non-Compliance***

1. State Notification of Violations: Adams County will cooperate fully with the State of Colorado by notifying the Oil and Gas Conservation Commission of any and all violations of the Colorado Laws and Regulations.

2. Delinquent Taxes: One condition of any oil and gas well building permit is that all taxes as provided by statute, shall be paid.
3. County Violations: The County has authority to cite violations under its control pursuant to Section 1-05-06 Criminal Remedies and Enforcement.
4. Legal Non-conforming: Adams County recognizes that there are oil and gas operations that were legally established prior to the effective date of these regulations that may or may not conform to these regulations. These operations may continue, provided the operation is not extended, expanded, or altered in a manner that changes and/or alters the nature, character, or extent of the land use impacts of the site.

4-10-02-03-03-05

**RESIDENTIAL CONSTRUCTION Standards**

1. **Residential Construction Standards:** The Director of Community and Economic Development ~~may shall~~ impose ~~any one (1) or more of~~ the following standards ~~on a specific site basis~~ as a condition of subdivision approval ~~and/or building permits on platted or unplatted land~~:
  - a. The ~~oil and gas well location~~ subdivision plat shall ~~include~~ contain a two-hundred-fifty (250) foot ~~buffer setback~~ in the form of an no-build easement on the Final Plat. No structures may be constructed within the buffer setback area.
  - b. The subdivision plat shall contain a five hundred (500) foot setback around each production facility in the form of a no-build easement on the Final Plat. No structures may be constructed within the setback area.
  - ~~cb.~~ Access to the ~~oil and gas well location~~ shall be provided by a public street or recorded easement for private access.
  - ~~de.~~ The Final Plat shall include notice to prospective buyers of the location of the ~~oil and gas well(s)~~ and associated pipeline easements.
  - ~~ed.~~ All oil and gas well flow ~~lines~~, gathering lines, and/or pipeline easements not located within the boundaries of a well site shall be graphically depicted on the Final Plat.

**fe.** All surface and subsurface agreements shall be noted on the Final Plat by the recorded book and page number.

**gf.** Pursuant to Section 4-06-01-02-01-12, where a new home and/or other permanent structure with plumbing is constructed within ~~three-five~~ three-five hundred (~~3500~~) feet of an existing ~~oil-and-gas~~ well, the property owner shall submit a signed waiver acknowledging the existence of the facility.

4-10-02-03-03-06

### ***OIL AND GAS WELL DRILLING AND PRODUCTION REVIEW***

1. **Review Process:** Any new oil and gas facility will require a Special Use Permit per Section 2-02-11 of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations. In lieu of a Special Use Permit application and review, the County Manager or his or her designee, at its sole discretion, may elect to negotiate and enter into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with an Operator. The County encourages MOUs to protect the environment, and effectively address the protection of the health, safety and welfare of Adams County residents.

If an MOU is executed, which includes all the best management practices determined necessary by the County Manager or his or her designee, then the applicant shall comply with all aspects of Section 04-10-02-05, Oil and Gas Facilities Administrative Use by Special Review.

2. **Amendments to the MOU:** Any change to the MOU from that approved by the Board of County Commissioners shall require either a Full Amendment or a Technical Review.

- a. **FULL AMENDMENT**

If the proposed amendment meets the criteria necessary for an oil and gas drilling and production permit, but substantially changes the MOU, then the Full Amendment shall need authorization by the Board of County Commissioners.

- b. **TECHNICAL REVIEW AMENDMENTS (TRA)**

The process and requirements for a Technical Review Amendment (TRA) would occur when changes to the MOU are of such a limited nature or scope that a Full Amendment would be unnecessary. Such TRAs may include, but are not limited to: minor changes to structures necessary to meet new technological methods and such

methods are technologically sound, economically practical, and reasonably available to the Operator, location and type of landscape material, relocation of light poles or fixtures that do not affect light levels at the property line, the relocation of access roads, color of structures. Such TRAs can be administratively approved by the County Manager or his or her designee.

c. PREREQUISITES FOR A TECHNICAL REVIEW  
AMENDMENT

The following factors shall be used by the County Manager or his or her designee to determine if an application is eligible for a TRA. These factors shall include, but are not necessarily limited to the following:

- (1) Proposed amendments do not fall within the criteria listed for Oil and Gas Drilling and Production Full Amendment as specified in these Regulations.
- (2) Proposed amendments do not violate existing zoning or subdivision regulations.
- (3) Proposed amendments do not relate to any site, building, or sign detail that was a condition of approval through the public hearing process.
- (4) Proposed amendments do not substantially change any of the original plans or items that may have been conditioned through the public hearing process.

4-10-02-03-03-07

***OIL AND GAS FACILITIES ADMINISTRATIVE USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW***

The intent of this Section 4-10-02-05 is to describe the Administrative Use by Special Review process and approval criteria for Oil and Gas Facilities. Notwithstanding any other language in the Development Standards and Regulations to the contrary, an Oil and Gas Facility or related site preparation or development, including any such Facility that requires a Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission (“COGCC”) permit, may not commence without first obtaining Use by Special Review approval, regardless of the zone district or category in which the operation will be located. Oil and Gas Facilities are specifically allowed in all zone districts, including Planned Unit Developments, subject to Use by Special Review approval and subject to obtaining other required permits and approvals.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-01 RELATIONSHIP TO SECTION 02-02-11, SPECIAL USE PERMIT**

This Section provides an Administrative Use by Special Review approval process for Oil and Gas Facilities where an applicant and the County have executed an acceptable Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) and the applicant meets other administrative approval criteria, as set forth in further detail below. In the event that an applicant has executed an MOU and obtains approval for an Administrative Use by Special Review for a particular Oil and Gas Facility, compliance with the procedures and criteria in Section 02-02-11, Special Use Permit, is not required. In other situations, in order to obtain approval for an oil and gas facility, the applicant must comply with the provisions of 02-02-11, Special Use Permit.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-02 ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL CRITERIA**

In order to obtain Administrative Use by Special Review approval, an Oil and Gas Facility shall first satisfy the following criteria:

- 1. Memorandum of Understanding:** An MOU acceptable to the County must have been executed by the applicant and the County and currently be in full force and effect, and the Oil and Gas Facility as proposed must be in compliance with the provisions of the MOU. An MOU may contain requirements similar to criteria contained within the Administrative Use by Special Review permit process. In such instances, the criteria within the Administrative Use by Special Review Permit shall govern.
- 2. Satisfy Submittal Requirements:** The application and exhibits for the Administrative Use by Special Review must satisfy all applicable submittal requirements in this Section.
- 3. Compatibility/ Land Use Impacts:** The Oil and Gas Facility shall be compatible with the surrounding area and shall not create any site specific conditions that present significant or material impacts to nearby land uses. Best management practices or conditions of permit approval may be used to achieve compliance with this criterion.
- 4. Emergency Service Providers:** The Oil and Gas Facility applicant must provide a commitment to serve (“will serve”) letter from the authority having jurisdiction for providing emergency services (fire protection and emergency medical services) for that facility, or, where no authority has jurisdiction, from an emergency

services provider with the ability to provide such emergency services.

#### 4-10-02-03-03-07-03 **ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESS**

1. **Pre-Submittal Meeting:** Prior to submitting an application for an Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility, the applicant is required to attend a pre-submittal meeting with representatives of the Community and Economic Development (“CED”) Department, unless waived. At the pre-submittal meeting the applicant will receive direction from County staff that will assist in preparing a complete application for submittal to the County and the County will supply the list of addresses of record for property owners within one-half mile who are to receive notice per Section 04-10-02-05-06 below. The County will also supply the applicant with a list of applicable referral entities that will be sent a referral packet.
2. **Review for Completeness:** Upon receipt of an Oil and Gas Use by Special Review application and fee, referral packets and associated application materials, the Community and Economic Development Department staff shall review the materials submitted to determine if the application is complete and consistent with the standards set forth in this Section 04-10-02-05.
3. **Concurrent Referral and Review:** CED staff will refer the complete application for a twenty-one (21) day review by the various divisions of the CED and the County Attorney's Office, as deemed appropriate. An application may require review by outside agencies such as the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers, if the project impacts a floodplain, and may also be referred to any life-safety providers, adjacent jurisdictions, local public health department, and others as may be deemed appropriate.
4. **Address Deficiencies:** The applicant will be notified of any outstanding issues in connection with application materials upon completion of this review and will be required to address any issues or deficiencies in connection with the application materials in accordance with Section 02-01-04, Determination of Sufficiency. If necessary, a meeting will be held to discuss any issues that need to be resolved. If necessary, the applicant will then submit an amended application, plan or other submittals, as appropriate, to the County for verification that the deficiencies have been addressed by the applicant. If the above-described

outstanding issues cannot be resolved, the Director may refer the case to the BOCC for its consideration.

5. **Final Review:** Upon acceptance of the final copy of the application and exhibits by the CED staff, the application materials will be forwarded for final review by the Director.

#### 4-10-02-03-03-07-04 **ADMINISTRATIVE SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS**

A Submittal Requirements list is available from the CED staff outlining the complete list of submittal items and the proper number of documents. Other submittal requirements may be required based on CED staff review. The following items are required as part of an Oil and Gas Facility application submittal:

1. **Pre-Submittal Notes or Waiver:** Notes from the pre-submittal meeting pertaining to the application, or signed waiver of pre-submittal meeting form.
2. **Application Form:** A completed Oil and Gas Facility application form. Application forms are available from the CED staff.
3. **Application Fees:** Application fee schedules are available from the CED staff.
4. **Plan:** An Oil and Gas Operations Plan drafted in accordance with 04-10-02-05-05 of this Section.
5. **Emergency Preparedness Plan:**
  - a. In General. Oil and gas operations shall not cause unreasonable risks of emergency situations such as explosions, fires, gas, oil or water pipeline leaks, ruptures, hydrogen sulfide or other toxic gas or fluid emissions, and hazardous material vehicle accidents or spills.
  - b. Emergency Preparedness Plan. Each Applicant with an operation in the County is required to implement an emergency preparedness plan for each specific oil and gas facility. The plan shall be referred to and approved by the Adams County Sheriff, the Office of Emergency Management, and the applicable fire district and filed with the County and updated on an annual basis or as conditions change (responsible field personnel change, ownership

changes, etc.). The emergency preparedness plan shall consist of at least the following information:

- (1) Name, address and phone number, including 24-hour emergency numbers for at least two persons located in or near Adams County who are responsible for emergency field operations.
- (2) An as-built facilities map in a format suitable for input into the County's GIS system depicting the locations and type of above and below ground facilities including sizes, and depths below grade of all oil and gas gathering and transmission lines and associated equipment, isolation valves, surface operations and their functions, as well as transportation routes to and from exploration and development sites, for emergency response and management purposes. The information concerning pipelines and isolation valves shall be held confidentially by the County's Office of Emergency Management, and shall only be disclosed in the event of an emergency. The County shall deny the right of inspection of the as-built facilities maps to the public pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-204.
- (3) Detailed information addressing each potential emergency that may be associated with the operation. This may include any or all of the following: explosions, fires, gas, oil or water pipeline leaks or ruptures, hydrogen sulfide or other toxic gas emissions, or hazardous material vehicle accidents or spills. For each potential emergency, threshold / trigger levels shall be pre-identified that govern when an emergency state is declared by the Applicant.
- (4) The plan shall include a provision that any spill outside of the containment area or which has the potential to leave the facility or to threaten a water body shall be reported to the emergency dispatch and the Director immediately.
- (5) Detailed information identifying access or evacuation routes, and health care facilities anticipated to be used.

- (6) Project specific emergency preparedness plans are required for any project that involves drilling or penetrating through known zones of hydrogen sulfide gas.
  - (7) The plan shall include a provision that obligates the Applicant to reimburse the appropriate emergency response service providers for costs incurred in connection with any emergency.
  - (8) Detailed information that the Applicant has adequate personnel, supplies, and funding to implement the emergency response plan immediately at all times during construction and operations.
  - (9) The plan shall include provisions that obligate the Applicant to keep onsite and make immediately available to any emergency responders the identification and corresponding Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) of all products used, stored or transported to the site. The MSDS sheets shall be provided immediately upon request to the Director, a public safety officer, or a health professional. In cases of spills or other emergency events, the plan shall include provisions establishing a notification process to emergency responders of potential products they may encounter, including the products used in the hydraulic fracturing fluids.
  - (10) The plan shall include a provision establishing a process by which the Applicant engages with the surrounding neighbors and schools to educate them on the risks and benefits of the on-site operations and to establish a process for surrounding neighbors and schools to communicate with the Applicant.
6. **Engineering Documents:** The following technical Engineering documents are required by the CED staff unless otherwise waived:
- a. **Construction Plans:**  
If applicable, Construction Plans for the proposed Oil and Gas Operation’s public improvements including road plan and profile sheets, storm drainage improvements plans and other public improvements, prepared in accordance with the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 9).
  - b. **Pavement Design Report:**

If applicable, a Pavement Design Report prepared in accordance with the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 7).

c. Grading Erosion and Sediment Control:

If applicable, a Grading, Erosion, Sediment Control Report and Plan as defined in the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 9).

d. Transportation, Roads, Access Standards, and Fees:

- (1) The Applicant's transportation plan must be designed and implemented to ensure public safety and maintain quality of life for other users of the county transportation system, adjacent residents, and affected property owners.
- (2) Where available, existing private roads shall be used to minimize land disturbance unless traffic safety, visual or noise concerns, or other adverse surface impacts clearly dictate otherwise.
- (3) Access roads on the site and access points to public roads as identified in the application materials shall be reviewed by the CED department and shall be built and maintained in accordance with the engineering specifications and access road standards defined in the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 8).
- (4) All applicable transportation fees shall be paid prior to issuance of a development plan review construction permit, including without limitation:
  - (a) access permit fees;
  - (b) oversized/overweight permit fees;
  - (c) right of way construction permit fees; and
  - (d) industrial traffic impact fees.
- (5) Oil and gas operations must minimize impacts to the physical infrastructure of the county transportation system. Any costs to improve county transportation system infrastructure necessitated by the proposed oil and gas operation shall be the responsibility of the Applicant. All transportation system infrastructure improvements and associated costs shall be determined by the CED department. The County shall perform the work or arrange for it to be performed. If the Applicant

disagrees with the infrastructure improvements or associated costs as assessed by CED, it may request that the department approve a different route for its proposed oil and gas operation that avoids the need for such improvements. Alternatively, the Applicant may engage a licensed civil engineering firm to perform a traffic impact study in accordance with Chapter 8 of the Development Standards and Regulations to independently evaluate county transportation system infrastructure improvements necessitated by the proposed oil and gas operation.

e. **Drainage Study/Technical Drainage Letter/Plan:**  
If applicable, a Drainage Study/Technical Drainage Letter/Plan prepared in accordance with the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 9).

f. **Floodplain Use Permit:**  
The applicant must obtain a Floodplain Use Permit, in accordance with the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations, if the proposed Oil and Gas construction disturbance or operation encroaches into the 100-year floodplain, or the access is crossing a major drainage way, as defined by the latest version of the Adams County Development Standards and Regulations (Chapter 9).

## **7. Surface Owner Documentation**

Documentation as to whether the surface owner and others with interest in the property have authorized the proposed Oil and Gas Facility.

## **8. Additional Information**

Additional information may be requested by the Director as deemed appropriate to process the application and to meet the criteria in this Section 04-10-02-05. The Director may also waive the submittal of any information required above as deemed appropriate.

### **4-10-02-03-03-07-05 OIL AND GAS OPERATIONS PLAN**

**1. Plan Format:** Two hard copies of all plans shall be provided and one copy of the plans shall be provided in digital format, on either a thumb drive or CD. No plans shall contain copyright restrictions or public use restrictions.

2. **Cover Sheet:** The cover sheet shall have a title block with the reference to an Administrative Use by Special Review, project name, and location by section, township and range. The cover sheet shall also include a legal description of the area, date of the drawing, existing zoning of the site, a sheet key, a vicinity map with north arrow (scale of 1" = 2,000' preferred) with an emphasis on the major roadway network within two (2) miles of the proposal, and all applicable County notes, an approval signature block and a block to insert the COGCC Permit number when approved. Upon approval, the first sheet will be signed by the Director.
3. **Impact Area Map:** The second sheet shall contain an Impact Area Map that shows the proposed location of the Oil and Gas Facility, locations of all existing oil and gas wells within the one-mile impact area, locations of all producing, closed, abandoned, and shut-in wells and other oil and gas operations within one (1) mile of the site, locations of all water wells within ½ mile of the proposed Oil and Gas Operation, Existing improvements within 1,500 feet of the location on which the operation is proposed, and all existing and proposed roads within the one-mile impact area.
4. **Drilling Operation Plan:** The third sheet shall provide a site plan of drilling operations with drilling equipment with existing and proposed finished-grade topography at two-foot (2') contours or less tied to a datum acceptable to the County. The applicant shall verify current information regarding what datum is acceptable to the County, prior to submitting the application for the Administrative Use by Special Review. The layout of the drilling equipment may be shown as a typical plan, if the County deems it appropriate for the extent of development of the proposed Oil and Gas Facility.
5. **Production Plan:** The fourth sheet shall provide a site plan of production operations with production equipment such as tanks and compressor stations with existing and proposed finished-grade topography at two-foot (2') contours or less tied to a datum acceptable to the County. The production plan shall also identify proposed drilling and completion schedules. A seed mix shall be provided for reseeding the well pad. Equipment layout may be a typical plan appropriate to the degree of development for the Oil and Gas Facility, if the County deems it appropriate for the extent of development of the proposed Oil and Gas Facility.

6. **Signage Plan/Sign Detail:** A dimensioned Signage Plan or Sign Detail shall be included on one of the sheets describing and illustrating the appearance, size, location, type, color, material, and illumination of all signs. Directional signs for emergency responders and inspectors shall be included, along with a 24-hour, 7-days per week contact information to deal with all noise complaints.
7. **Final Plan:** Once the review process is complete and staff has determined that all outstanding issues have been resolved, staff will request a final copy of the Oil and Gas Operations Plan. The final copy of the Plan shall be paper. The final Oil and Gas Operations Plan shall contain the information listed above unless otherwise specified by the County staff.

4-10-02-03-03-07-06 **NOTICE OF APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS; DISCRETIONARY NEIGHBORHOOD MEETING**

1. **Notice:** The applicant shall provide written notification by U.S. Mail to owners of parcels within ½ mile of the boundaries of the proposed parcel where an application for an Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility has been filed with the County. The Notice of Application shall meet the format prescribed by the County and shall be mailed no less than ten (10) days prior to the submittal date of an application for an Oil and Gas Facility to the County. The Notice of Application shall contain a statement informing the recipients of the notice that they may request written notification by the Applicant of the commencement of construction and commencement of drilling operations. The applicant shall provide written notification by U.S. Mail, which shall include an offer to consult, to any municipality or county whose boundaries are within 1/2 mile of the proposed parcel where an application for an Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility has been filed with the County.

2. **Neighborhood Meeting:** The Director may require the applicant to conduct a neighborhood meeting at a convenient public location with adjacent and surrounding land owners and other interested parties in accordance with Section 02-01-02, Neighborhood Meetings. At the neighborhood meeting, the Applicant shall provide an overview of its proposed oil and gas operation and allow those in attendance to provide input as to the proposed operation, including, but not limited to, issues that arise from application of these regulations to the

proposed operation, and suggested mitigation to adequately ensure compliance with these regulations.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-07 APPROVAL/DENIAL OF ADMINISTRATIVE USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW**

- 1. Action to Approve, Conditionally Approve or Deny:** Unless there are any issues that have not been resolved by the applicant, the County will exercise its best efforts to process the Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility within forty-two (42) calendar days from the date of complete submittal by the applicant. The Administrative Use by Special Review application can be administratively approved, approved with conditions necessary to meet the criteria of this Section or denied based upon noncompliance with the criteria of this Section. Written notice of the decision shall promptly be provided to the applicant, and, if denied, the notice shall include a statement of the reason(s) for denial. The forty-two (42) calendar day timeframe counts only as the County's processing time and does not include the applicant's response time.
- 2. Director's Discretion to Refer to the Board:** In lieu of the Director making a decision on an application, the Director has the discretion to refer any application for Administrative Use by Special Review or amendment thereto to the BOCC for its consideration and decision at a public hearing. In such event, the BOCC shall make its determination based upon the requirements of this Section; however, unless waived by the BOCC, notice of the hearing shall be provided to those parties entitled to notice as set forth in Section 04-10-02-03-03-07-06 prior to the BOCC hearing. At such public hearing, the BOCC may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the application.
- 3. Expiration of Approval; Permit Renewal Process: Provided at least one well is drilled and completed during the initial three (3) year period following approval of a multi-well pad location, such approval permanently vests the permitted location for the number of wells as contained within the initial permit approval. However, only those wells that are drilled and completed during the initial three (3) year period following approval of a multi-well pad location shall be vested. If additional wells are to be drilled at the multi-well pad location following expiration of the initial three (3) year period, the permit for those wells shall be renewed pursuant to this provision. The Permit Renewal Process is the process to ensure application of most recent and applicable Best Management**

Practices associated with application of the permitting standards contained within these Development Standards. The Permit Renewal Process also allows the Operator to inform the County of any most recent and applicable Best Management Practices associated with well drilling and completion. To achieve these goals, the Permit Renewal Process shall include application of all necessary and relevant provisions of this Code as determined by the Director of Community and Economic Development. The Permit Renewal Process is the County process which serves to update the County oil and gas well permit associated with a multi-well pad location and is not a process to deny a previously approved permit. An approval of the Administrative Use by Special Review shall only be valid for five (5) years unless the Oil and Gas Facility is substantially commenced prior to the expiration of such timeframe.

- 4. Permits Required Prior to Commencement of Operations:** If applicable, an Access Permit and Oversize Load (OSL) Permit shall be required prior to the development of the Oil and Gas Facility. A Floodplain Use Permit shall be required prior to any work within a floodplain. A Building Permit may be required prior to construction of certain structures within the Oil and Gas Facility.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-08 APPEAL of DECISION ON APPLICATION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE USE BY SPECIAL REVIEW**

An applicant may appeal the Director's denial of an application for an Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility, or any conditions of approval, to the Board of County Commissioners for a hearing. The applicant must file the appeal within fourteen (14) calendar days of the date of the Director's decision by submitting a letter of appeal to the Director. Thereafter, the matter will be scheduled on the next available agenda of the BOCC. At such hearing, the BOCC may affirm, reverse or modify the decision of the Director, based upon the criteria set forth in Section 4-10-02-03-03-07-02.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-09 MOU PROVISIONS AS CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL**

An approval of an Administrative Use by Special Review for an Oil and Gas Facility shall automatically include as conditions of approval all provisions of the MOU executed by the applicant, except to the extent waived by the Director or the Board.

**4-10-02-03-03-07-10 ADMINISTRATIVE AMENDMENT**

If the applicant or operator proposes changes from the plans approved through the Administrative Use by Special Review, including any changes in the source or location of water to be used by the Oil and Gas Facility, the applicant or operator is required to submit an amendment to the application showing the changes, unless such requirement has been waived by the Director. The proposed amendment will be reviewed by staff and, if applicable, staff may require additional information. The amended application will need to meet all requirements of this Section and be approved in writing by the Director, or the BOCC (if the BOCC approved the original application), prior to implementation.

**4-10-02-03-03-08 COGCC AND COUNTY APPROVALS REQUIRED**

Development of the Oil and Gas Facility shall not commence until and unless any required permits from COGCC, and a Use by Special Review (administrative or non-administrative) or Special Use Permit from the County, have both been approved.

**4-10-02-03-03-09 COGCC RULE 305(a) or 305A CONSULTATION PROCESS**

If consultation between an operator and the County is triggered by either Rule 305(a)(1) or Rule 305A, the Director may, in his discretion use either the Administrative Use by Special Review permitting process or the Special Use permitting process, or, in the case neither process is appropriate, develop a case by case consultation process with the operator.

**4-10-02-03-03-10 STANDARDS FOR FLOWLINES AND GATHERING PIPELINES**

The following standards apply specifically to flowlines and gathering pipelines that are located outside of the well site boundary.

1. **Alignment:** The County prefers that gathering pipelines be aligned with established roads and share existing pipeline rights-of-way and to consolidate new corridors for pipeline rights-of-way, whenever possible.
2. **Water Body Crossing:** Boring technology shall be used for gathering pipelines crossing streams, rivers or irrigation ditches.
3. **Compliance with Floodplain Regulations:** Flowline or gathering pipelines located in or crossing an area of Special Flood Hazard shall

comply with the requirements of the County's floodplain regulations in Section 2-02-07.

**4. Operations and Maintenance:** Operations and maintenance shall be conducted in accordance with the Procedural Manual for operations, maintenance, and emergencies prepared in conformance with 40 CFR § 192.605 for gas gathering pipelines or 40 CFR § 195.402 for oil gathering pipelines, as amended.

**5. GPS Information and As-Built Drawings:** Within ninety (90) days of completion of construction of a flowline or gathering line located off a well site, the following information shall be provided to the Director:

- a. Global positioning system (GPS) information sufficient to locate the pipeline in a format compatible with the County's GIS system;
- b. As-built drawings;
- c. Engineering plans, drawings, and maps with summarized specifications showing the horizontal location, covering depths, and location of shutoff valves of the pipeline. The drawings shall show the location of other pipelines and utilities that are crossed or paralleled within fifteen feet (15') of the pipeline right-of-way;
- d. Detailed cross-section drawings for all public rights-of-ways and easement crossings on County property; and
- e. A list of the names and mailing addresses of all residents and property owners adjacent to the pipeline.
- f. The information required by this Section shall be held confidentially by the County, and shall only be disclosed in the event of an emergency. The County shall deny the right of inspection of this information to the public pursuant to C.R.S. § 24-72-204.

**6. Recordation of As-Built Location and Abandonment:**

- a. A legal description of the pipeline location shall be recorded with the County and the County Clerk and Recorder within ninety (90) days after construction is completed;
- b. The Director and the County Clerk and Recorder shall be notified of abandonment of any pipeline within ninety (90) days after abandonment.

**7. Valves:** New flowline or gathering pipelines located off the well site shall be equipped with automatic shut-off valves or remote control valves.

8. Notification of Gas Leaks: The Local Government Designee shall be notified immediately of gas leaks.

4-10-02-03-03-11

**PLUGGED AND ABANDONED, AND FORMER OIL AND GAS PRODUCTION SITES**

This Section is enacted to protect and promote the health, safety, morals, convenience, order, prosperity, or general welfare of the present and future residents of the County. These regulations are intended to be an exercise of the land use authority of the County.

9. Prior to submittal of a final plat, minor subdivision plat, or site development plan, any plugged and abandoned well shall be located, excavated (if it was cut off and buried), and surveyed. The plugged and abandoned well shall be permanently marked by a brass plaque set in concrete similar to a permanent bench mark to monument its existence and location. Such plaque shall contain any information required on a dry hole marker by the Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission and the County.
10. As a condition of review of any final plat, minor subdivision plat, or site development plan which contains a plugged and abandoned well or former oil and gas production site or is within 200 feet of such well or site, the owner shall submit a location diagram of the location of the well.
11. On every final plat and on every minor subdivision plat which contains a plugged and abandoned well, or for property within 100 feet of a plugged or abandoned well, there shall be dedicated a well maintenance and workover setback easement, the dimensions of which shall be not less than fifty feet in width and 100 feet in length. No structures shall be located within this setback. The plugged and abandoned well shall be located in the center of the easement. There shall be public access for ingress and egress to the easement of a width of not less than twenty feet.
12. The well maintenance and workover setback shall be depicted on the final plat or site development plan.
13. Every final plat, minor subdivision plat, and site development plan which contains a plugged and abandoned well, or for property within 200 feet of a plugged or abandoned well, shall include the following notation: "The owner shall disclose to prospective purchasers of lots within a radius of 200 feet of the plugged and abandoned well of (1) the location of the plugged and abandoned well, (2) the location of the

maintenance and workover setback, and (3) the purpose for the well maintenance and workover setback.”

14. Prior to issuance of a grading permit within a development containing a known reserve pit site, the reserve pit site shall be tested for expansive soils. Reserve pits containing expansive soils in locations proposed for buildings shall be subject to the provisions of the International Building Code.

15. No utility lines shall be installed within ten feet of any plugged and abandoned well.

#### 4-10-02-04 HEAVY INDUSTRY

##### 4-10-02-04-01 GENERAL

1. *Outdoor Storage:* Materials may be stored outdoors, provided the storage area is consistent with the zone district allowances. All outdoor storage shall be screened in accordance with the Fencing, Walls and Screening section (See Section 4-10-01-03) of these standards and regulations. **\*Adopted by the BoCC on December 13, 2010**
2. *Garbage Storage:* Any garbage storage area located outside shall be screened from the view of the public in accordance with the Fencing, Walls, and Screening section of these standards and regulations.
3. *Smoke and Odor Control:* Smoke and odor shall be controlled by filter, scrubbers, fans, or other means.

##### 4-10-02-04-02 AUCTION YARDS, WITH LIVESTOCK

1. *Minimum Parcel Area:* one (1) acre
2. *Location:* All auction yards shall be located at least fifty (50) feet away from any on-property residence, fifty (50) feet from any right-of-way and five hundred (500) feet from any off-property residence.
3. *Operation in Accordance to County Tax Regulations:* The yard shall operate in accordance with the County Sales and Tax Department Regulations.
4. *Animal Care:* All animals shall be cared for in a humane and sanitary manner as approved by the Colorado Department of Agriculture and the State Veterinarian’s Office.
5. *Manure Handling:* Manure shall be handled and disposed of in a sanitary method, approved by Tri-County Health Department.